
Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District 
Regular Meeting of The Board of Trustees 

   
THE MEETING WILL BEGIN AT 7:00 PM AND WILL BE HELD AT THE NORTHFIELD LIBRARY. 

INSTRUCTIONS TO JOIN VIRTUALLY POSTED AT WWW.WINNETKALIBRARY.ORG 
 

 

*Attachments 
 

AGENDA 
Monday, December 16, 2024 

 
I. Call to Order 

 
II. Roll Call 

 
III. Public Comments 

 
IV. Approval of Minutes 

• Approval of Minutes of November 18, 2024 Regular Meeting* (1 min) 
 

V. Financial Report 
• November 2024 Financial Statements* (5 mins) 
 

VI. Library Reports 
• Director’s Report* (10 minutes) 
• Board President’s Comments (10 minutes) 

 
VII. Liaisons to Other Organizations – Reports 

• Winnetka Village (5 mins) 
• Northfield Village (5 mins) 

 
VIII. Unfinished Business 

• Update on Winnetka Library Safety Project* (Engberg Anderson, 20 mins) 
• Update on Northfield Library Renovation Project (5 mins) 
 

IX. New Business 
• Presentation of FY23-24 Financial Audit* (ATA Group, 15 mins) 
• 2024 Review of Standards for Illinois Libraries* (10 mins) 
• Review & Approval of Proposed Northfield Lease Extension (10 mins) 

 
X. Communications 

• The library will be closed on Tuesday, December 24th, Wednesday, December 25th, 
December 31st, January 1st for the holidays.    

• The next regular meeting will be on Monday, January 20th at 7 p.m. at the Winnetka 
Library. 

 
XI. Public Comments 

 
XII. Adjournment 

1

http://www.winnetkalibrary.org/


WINNETKA-NORTHFIELD PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

November 18, 2024 

I. Call to Order
The meeting was held at the Winnetka Library, 768 Oak St., Winnetka,
Illinois.  President Mitchell called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. A quorum was
present.

II. Roll Call
Present: Trustees Travis Gosselin, Matt Kinnich, Sarah Munoz, Ranjini Shankar,
Thomas Sundell, Sarah Tegel, and Board President Melissa Mitchell; and Library
Exec. Director Monica Dombrowski.

Present was library employee Mark Swenson.

III. Public Comments
No comments.

IV. Approval of Minutes
Approve minutes of the October 21, 2024 regular meeting.
President Mitchell announced approval of the October 21 2024 Regular Meeting
Minutes.

V. Financial Report
Trustee Munoz presented the October 2024 Financial Statement. For the
Kenilworth allocation, it currently references only the physical collection but we
can now track use of the digital collection so that we could re-negotiate in the
future based on use of both collections.

VI. Library Reports
Library Director’s Report
Director Dombrowski presented the October 2024 Director’s Report, which was
included in the board packet for November 18, 2024.

Board President’s Report
President Mitchell had nothing to report.

VII. Liaison Reports
Winnetka Village – Trustee Gosselin stated that the Caucus has now slated
candidates for all the relevant boards.  The Park District will no longer have its
board act as a committee of the whole outside of regular board meetings.

Northfield Village – Trustee Kinnich reported on the results of the village meeting
and survey regarding the defeat of the proposed roundabout.

VIII. Unfinished Business
• Update on the Northfield Library Renovation Project

Exec. Director Dombrowski provided an update, stating that the Village/Library
committee received nine responses to the RFQ, which are being reviewed by the
committee members to select the top three firms for proposals.

2



• Update on the Winnetka Library Safety Project
Exec. Director Dombrowski updated regarding the plat consolidation, asbestos
investigation, and the updated project scope.  A final design meeting will occur in
December in time to bring costs to the December board meeting for review.

• Approval of the FY24-25 Levy Ordnance
On motion by Trustee Munoz and by roll call vote, the levy ordinance was
approved:

ROLL CALL VOTE
AYES: Trustees Gosselin, Kinnich, Munoz, Shankar, Sundell, Tegel, and Mitchell
NAYS: 0

IX. New Business
No new business was before the board

X. Communications
The next regular meeting of the board will be held on Monday, December 16th at
7 p.m. at the Northfield Library.

The library will be closed on Thursday, December 5 for Staff Training Day and on
November 28 and 29 as well as closing early on November 27 for the
Thanksgiving holiday.

XI. Public Comments
No comments

XII. Adjournment
There being no further business to come before the Board, a Motion to adjourn
was made by Trustee Kinnich.

The Motion passed on voice vote and President Mitchell adjourned the meeting
at 7:31 p.m.

Respectfully submitted, 

Thomas Sundell 
Board Secretary 

_____________________ Melissa Mitchell, President 

_____________________ Thomas Sundell, Secretary 

3



Revenues

Library Fund 5,047,935.00 2,103,306.25 2,430,485.01 %48.15 327,178.76

Building Fund 399,690.00 166,537.50 195,374.40 %48.88 28,836.90

Total Revenues 5,447,625.00 2,269,843.75 2,625,859.41 %48.20 356,015.66

Expenses

Library Fund 4,910,230.00 2,045,929.17 1,659,202.59 %33.79 (386,726.58)
Building Fund 399,000.00 166,250.00 98,134.50 %24.60 (68,115.50)
Special Reserve Fund 0.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00 0.00

Total Expenses 5,309,230.00 2,212,179.17 1,757,337.09 %33.10 (454,842.08)

Total Revenues 5,447,625.00 2,269,843.75 2,625,859.41 %48.20 356,015.66
Total Expenses 5,309,230.00 2,212,179.17 1,757,337.09 %33.10 454,842.08

Excess Revenues less Expenses 138,395.00 57,664.58 868,522.32 810,857.74

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

All Funds Summary

For the 5 Months Ended November 30, 2024
Prorated Budget Percentage Spent: 41.67%

Variance vs.

Annual Prorated Current % of Prorated

Budget Budget Year-to-Date Budget Budget

1
4



Annual Prorated Year-to-Date % of Variance vs.

Budget Budget Actual Budget Prorated Budget

Operating Revenue

Property Tax 4,551,670.00 1,896,529.17 2,232,747.97 %49.05 336,218.80

Replacement Tax 45,000.00 18,750.00 23,081.63 %51.29 4,331.63

Collections 166,315.00 69,297.92 64,587.23 %38.83 (4,710.69)

Materials 8,000.00 3,333.33 4,438.22 %55.48 1,104.89

Other Income 276,950.00 115,395.83 105,629.96 %38.14 (9,765.87)

Total Operating Revenue 5,047,935.00 2,103,306.25 2,430,485.01 %48.15 327,178.76

Operating Expenses

Personnel 2,837,750.00 1,182,395.83 1,024,312.91 %36.10 (158,082.92)

Administration 193,930.00 80,804.17 85,389.77 %44.03 4,585.60

Utilities 98,000.00 40,833.33 33,411.89 %34.09 (7,421.44)

IT Services 273,000.00 113,750.00 141,065.52 %51.67 27,315.52

Public Relations 61,000.00 25,416.67 16,844.05 %27.61 (8,572.62)

Library Materials - Adult 633,700.00 264,041.67 255,447.12 %40.31 (8,594.55)

Library Materials - Youth 83,750.00 34,895.83 32,247.81 %38.50 (2,648.02)

Programs 109,100.00 45,458.33 42,330.38 %38.80 (3,127.95)

Capital 620,000.00 258,333.33 28,153.14 %4.54 (230,180.19)

Total Operating Expenses 4,910,230.00 2,045,929.17 1,659,202.59 %33.79 (386,726.58)

Total Revenues 5,047,935.00 2,103,306.25 2,430,485.01 %48.15 327,178.76

Total Expenses 4,910,230.00 2,045,929.17 1,659,202.59 %33.79 (386,726.58)

Excess Revenues less Expenses 137,705.00 57,377.08 771,282.42 713,905.34

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Library Fund Summary

For the 5 Months Ended November 30, 2024

Prorated Budget Percentage Spent: 41.67%

2
5



LIBRARY FUND

Revenues

Taxes

Property Taxes Collections 4,551,670.00 1,896,529.17 2,232,747.97 %49.05 336,218.80

Replacement Tax 45,000.00 18,750.00 23,081.63 51.29 4,331.63

Total Taxes 4,596,670.00 1,915,279.17 2,255,829.60 %49.08 340,550.43

Collections

Per Capita Grant 27,465.00 11,443.75 27,465.08 %100.00 16,021.33

Kenilworth Services 134,850.00 56,187.50 35,535.26 26.35 (20,652.24)

Studio Fees 1,250.00 520.83 451.08 36.09 (69.75)

Lost/Damaged Mat. 2,750.00 1,145.83 1,135.81 41.30 (10.02)

Total Collections 166,315.00 69,297.92 64,587.23 %38.83 (4,710.69)

Materials

Copy/Printing 6,500.00 2,708.33 4,275.98 %65.78 1,567.65

Book Sales 1,500.00 625.00 162.24 10.82 (462.76)

Total Materials 8,000.00 3,333.33 4,438.22 %55.48 1,104.89

Other Income

Rails Support Grant 0.00 0.00 2,658.20 %0.00 2,658.20

Checking Interest Income 6,000.00 2,500.00 7,764.98 129.42 5,264.98

Byline Bank IMA Interest 250,000.00 104,166.67 94,235.24 37.69 (9,931.43)

Money Market-Interest 2,000.00 833.33 935.11 46.76 101.78

Misc. Revenue 450.00 187.50 36.43 8.10 (151.07)

Gift Fund (over $100) 1,000.00 416.67 0.00 0.00 (416.67)

Friends Donations 17,500.00 7,291.67 0.00 0.00 (7,291.67)

Total Other Income 276,950.00 115,395.83 105,629.96 %38.14 (9,765.87)

Total Revenue
5,047,935.00 2,103,306.25 2,430,485.01 %48.15 327,178.76

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Modified Cash Basis

For the 5 Months Ended November 30, 2024

Prorated Budget Percentage Spent: 41.67%

Annual Prorated Year to Date % of Variance vs.

Budget Budget
Actual

Budget Prorated
Budget

3
6



LIBRARY FUND

Expenses

Personnel

IMRF Expenses 75,000.00 31,250.00 24,965.05 %33.29 (6,284.95)

FICA 175,000.00 72,916.67 66,914.94 38.24 (6,001.73)

Salaries 2,275,000.00 947,916.67 838,281.06 36.85 (109,635.61)

Health Insurance 275,000.00 114,583.33 78,944.34 28.71 (35,638.99)

Employee Asst. Program 500.00 208.33 250.00 50.00 41.67

Professional Development 30,000.00 12,500.00 12,306.00 41.02 (194.00)

Flexible Spending Account 1,250.00 520.83 250.00 20.00 (270.83)

Staff Recognition/Events/Meetings 6,000.00 2,500.00 2,401.52 40.03 (98.48)

Total Personnel 2,837,750.00 1,182,395.83 1,024,312.91 %36.10 (158,082.92)

Administration

Audit Fees 13,430.00 5,595.83 9,050.00 %67.39 3,454.17

Library Supplies 46,000.00 19,166.67 13,820.84 30.05 (5,345.83)

Office Supplies 5,800.00 2,416.67 3,622.30 62.45 1,205.63

Breakroom Supplies 3,400.00 1,416.67 865.37 25.45 (551.30)

Postage 3,500.00 1,458.33 1,402.76 40.08 (55.57)

Hospitality 500.00 208.33 0.00 0.00 (208.33)

Accounting and Bookkeeping 24,000.00 10,000.00 11,355.00 47.31 1,355.00

Delivery Service 5,500.00 2,291.67 2,292.81 41.69 1.14

Payroll Services 9,000.00 3,750.00 2,533.66 28.15 (1,216.34)

Liability Insurance Costs 30,500.00 12,708.33 30,675.00 100.57 17,966.67

Board Expenses 5,000.00 2,083.33 133.33 2.67 (1,950.00)

Memberships 7,000.00 2,916.67 2,213.24 31.62 (703.43)

Legal 18,000.00 7,500.00 1,541.60 8.56 (5,958.40)

Consultants 5,000.00 2,083.33 0.00 0.00 (2,083.33)

Investment Fees 16,800.00 7,000.00 5,692.17 33.88 (1,307.83)

Miscellaneous 500.00 208.33 191.69 38.34 (16.64)

Total Administration 193,930.00 80,804.17 85,389.77 %44.03 4,585.60

Utilities

Electricity 40,000.00 16,666.67 19,582.68 %48.96 2,916.01

Water 5,000.00 2,083.33 3,185.82 63.72 1,102.49

Storm Sewer 1,500.00 625.00 670.11 44.67 45.11

Natural Gas 10,000.00 4,166.67 1,569.76 15.70 (2,596.91)

Telephone 17,500.00 7,291.67 82.50 0.47 (7,209.17)

Internet Services 24,000.00 10,000.00 8,321.02 34.67 (1,678.98)

Total Utilities 98,000.00 40,833.33 33,411.89 %34.09 (7,421.44)

Information Technology

CCS Operating 79,000.00 32,916.67 36,733.24 %46.50 3,816.57

Software 35,000.00 14,583.33 28,248.01 80.71 13,664.68

LAN Management 40,000.00 16,666.67 16,738.05 41.85 71.38

Hardware 4,000.00 1,666.67 1,879.40 46.99 212.73

Website/Platform Fees 60,000.00 25,000.00 27,157.49 45.26 2,157.49

Photocopier Leases 25,000.00 10,416.67 10,525.47 42.10 108.80

Computer Equipment 30,000.00 12,500.00 19,783.86 65.95 7,283.86

Total Information Technology 273,000.00 113,750.00 141,065.52 %51.67 27,315.52

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Modified Cash Basis

For the 5 Months Ended November 30, 2024

Prorated Budget Percentage Spent: 41.67%

Annual Prorated Year to Date % of Variance vs.

Budget Budget
Actual

Budget Prorated
Budget

4
7



LIBRARY FUND

Public Relations

Promotional 11,000.00 4,583.33 3,098.07 %28.16 (1,485.26)

Newsletter/Mailers 35,000.00 14,583.33 11,708.23 33.45 (2,875.10)

PR Supplies 4,000.00 1,666.67 43.54 1.09 (1,623.13)

Marketing/Advertising 11,000.00 4,583.33 1,994.21 18.13 (2,589.12)

Total Public Relations 61,000.00 25,416.67 16,844.05 %27.61 (8,572.62)

Library Materials - Adult

Books-Fiction-Adult 85,000.00 35,416.67 36,109.89 %42.48 693.22

Books-Non-Fiction-Adult 75,000.00 31,250.00 27,358.27 36.48 (3,891.73)

Periodicals 20,200.00 8,416.67 16,149.84 79.95 7,733.17

DVDs-Adult 25,000.00 10,416.67 10,457.05 41.83 40.38

Audio Books-Adult 6,500.00 2,708.33 2,709.37 41.68 1.04

Books-Digital 355,000.00 147,916.67 118,875.94 33.49 (29,040.73)

Online Database 65,000.00 27,083.33 43,622.64 67.11 16,539.31

Video Games-Adults 2,000.00 833.33 164.12 8.21 (669.21)

Total Library Materials - Adult 633,700.00 264,041.67 255,447.12 %40.31 (8,594.55)

Library Materials - Youth

Kits 3,500.00 1,458.33 855.70 %24.45 (602.63)

Books-Fiction-Juv 42,500.00 17,708.33 14,090.86 33.15 (3,617.47)

Books-Non-Fiction-Juv 14,000.00 5,833.33 7,030.68 50.22 1,197.35

DVDs-Juv 750.00 312.50 269.90 35.99 (42.60)

Audio Books/Talking Books Juv 17,500.00 7,291.67 8,668.68 49.54 1,377.01

Video Games-Juv 5,500.00 2,291.67 1,331.99 24.22 (959.68)

Total Library Materials - Youth 83,750.00 34,895.83 32,247.81 %38.50 (2,648.02)

Programs

Reading Programs 11,000.00 4,583.33 3,620.29 %32.91 (963.04)

Programming - Studio 17,600.00 7,333.33 4,283.55 24.34 (3,049.78)

Programming - Youth 42,000.00 17,500.00 17,374.21 41.37 (125.79)

Programming - Adult 35,500.00 14,791.67 16,842.43 47.44 2,050.76

Studio Maintenance/Repair 3,000.00 1,250.00 209.90 7.00 (1,040.10)

Total Programs 109,100.00 45,458.33 42,330.38 %38.80 (3,127.95)

Capital

Capital Outlay 400,000.00 166,666.67 21,901.76 %5.48 (144,764.91)

Building 155,000.00 64,583.33 4,943.86 3.19 (59,639.47)

Equipment/Furniture 65,000.00 27,083.33 1,307.52 2.01 (25,775.81)

Total Capital 620,000.00 258,333.33 28,153.14 %4.54 (230,180.19)

Total Expenses 4,910,230.00 2,045,929.17 1,659,202.59 %33.79 (386,726.58)

Excess Revenues less Expenses 137,705.00 57,377.08 771,282.42 713,905.34

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Modified Cash Basis

For the 5 Months Ended November 30, 2024

Prorated Budget Percentage Spent: 41.67%

Annual Prorated Year to Date % of Variance vs.

Budget Budget
Actual

Budget Prorated
Budget

5
8



BUILDING FUND

Revenues

Property Taxes Collections-Building 399,690.00 166,537.50 195,374.40 %48.88 28,836.90

Total Revenue 399,690.00 166,537.50 195,374.40 %48.88 28,836.90

Expenses

Northfield Lease 72,500.00 30,208.33 30,142.40 %41.58 (65.93)

Janitorial Supplies 11,000.00 4,583.33 3,109.27 28.27 (1,474.06)

Snow Removal 9,000.00 3,750.00 1,735.00 19.28 (2,015.00)

Building Appraisal 500.00 208.33 0.00 0.00 (208.33)

Building Maintenance Service 113,000.00 47,083.33 40,160.00 35.54 (6,923.33)

Elevators 10,000.00 4,166.67 1,555.00 15.55 (2,611.67)

Landscaping 20,000.00 8,333.33 8,877.69 44.39 544.36

HVAC 11,200.00 4,666.67 3,999.00 35.71 (667.67)

Flooring & Painting 125,000.00 52,083.33 0.00 0.00 (52,083.33)

Automatic Doors 7,500.00 3,125.00 360.00 4.80 (2,765.00)

Roof 700.00 291.67 366.00 52.29 74.33

Alarms & Security 6,000.00 2,500.00 1,276.14 21.27 (1,223.86)

Equipment 2,100.00 875.00 0.00 0.00 (875.00)

Plumbing 1,500.00 625.00 0.00 0.00 (625.00)

Electrical 7,000.00 2,916.67 5,505.00 78.64 2,588.33

Misc Services 2,000.00 833.33 1,049.00 52.45 215.67

Total Expenses 399,000.00 166,250.00 98,134.50 %24.60 (68,115.50)

Excess Revenues less Expenses 690.00$ 287.50$ 97,239.90$ 96,952.40

UNEMPLOYMENT FUND

Revenues

Total Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00 0.00

Expenses

Excess Revenues less Expenses 0.00$ 0.00$ 0.00$ 0.00

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Modified Cash Basis

For the 5 Months Ended November 30, 2024

Prorated Budget Percentage Spent: 41.67%

Annual Prorated Year to Date % of Variance vs.

Budget Budget
Actual

Budget Prorated
Budget

6
9



SPECIAL RESERVE FUND

Revenues

Transfer In 0.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00 0.00

Expenses

Excess Revenues less Expenses 0.00$ 0.00$ 0.00$ 0.00

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Modified Cash Basis

For the 5 Months Ended November 30, 2024

Prorated Budget Percentage Spent: 41.67%

Annual Prorated Year to Date % of Variance vs.

Budget Budget
Actual

Budget Prorated
Budget

7
10



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number
Check
Date

Check
Amount

Vendor Checks

U.S. Postal Service 4752 11/11/24 971.09

10-0-5722 Newsletter/Mailers Permit #85 - Acct 551619a 971.09

ATA Group, LLP 4753 11/14/24 6,550.00

10-0-5101 Audit Fees Inv 12575; 10.31.24 6,550.00

Background Screening Consultants LLC 4754 11/14/24 66.70

10-0-5736 Legal Inv 24601; 11.01.24 66.70

Chicago Tribune 4755 11/14/24 252.00

10-1-5342 Periodicals-Winnetka Inv 102842143000; Oct. 2024 252.00

Colley Elevator Co. 4756 11/14/24 330.00

70-0-5749 Elevators Inv 269577; 09.30.24 330.00

Engberg Anderson, Inc. 4757 11/14/24 5,061.90

10-0-5800 Capital Outlay Inv 24373700-3; 11.30.24 5,061.90

GUY SCOPELLITI LANDSCAPE 4758 11/14/24 1,959.00

70-0-5750 Landscaping Inv 45593; 11.01.24 1,959.00

Image Systems & Business Solutions Leasing a Progr 4759 11/30/24 (4,523.19)

10-0-5766 Photocopier Leases To VOID check 4759 -786.25

10-0-5766 Photocopier Leases To VOID check 4759 -3,736.94

Image Systems & Business Solutions Leasing a Progr 4759 11/14/24 4,523.19

10-0-5766 Photocopier Leases Inv 410075; 11.11.24 786.25

10-0-5766 Photocopier Leases Inv 588754335 3,736.94

Isabel Raci 4760 11/14/24 510.00

10-0-5908 Programming - Adult Event Presentation 510.00

James R. Parks 4761 11/14/24 250.00

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Event Presentation; 11.02.24 250.00

Jeff Mishur 4762 11/14/24 360.00

10-0-5908 Programming - Adult Event Presentation; 12.02.24 360.00

Jennifer Fisher 4763 11/14/24 6.99

10-0-4150 Lost/Damaged Materials Reimbursement 6.99

Kelli Marshall 4764 11/14/24 250.00

10-0-5908 Programming - Adult Event Presentation; 12.03.24 250.00

Library Market LLC 4765 11/14/24 3,500.00

10-0-5177 Website/Platform Fees Inv 3562; 08.01.24 3,500.00

Linden Patio Homes Condominium 4766 11/14/24 800.00

70-0-5799 Misc Services Inv V-3779 800.00

Martina Jae Mathisen 4767 11/14/24 700.00

10-0-5114 Professional Development Event Presentation; 12.05.24 700.00

Molly Stamer 4768 11/14/24 27.00

10-0-4150 Lost/Damaged Materials Reimbursement 27.00

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Check Register
All Bank Accounts

November 1, 2024 - November 30, 2024

8
11



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number
Check
Date

Check
Amount

OCLC Inc 4769 11/14/24 251.58

10-1-5345 Books-Digital-Winnetka Inv 1000410549; 10.31.24 251.58

Outsource IT Solutions Group 4770 11/14/24 12,375.00

10-0-5134 Software Inv 81415; 11.12.24 12,375.00

Raul Negrete Moyo 4771 11/14/24 1,735.00

70-0-5740 Snow Removal Salt Delivery 1,735.00

The Book Stall 4772 11/14/24 101.57

10-2-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

Inv 545454; 11.11.24 28.00

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

Inv 543751; 10.30.24 24.00

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

Inv 544003; 11.01.24 11.99

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

Inv 544828; 11.07.24 21.59

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

Inv 544937; 11.07.24 15.99

WP Company LLC 4773 11/14/24 2,036.00

10-0-5177 Website/Platform Fees Inv 3950; 11.01.24 2,036.00

WT. Cox Subscriptions, Inc. 4774 11/14/24 30.00

10-1-5342 Periodicals-Winnetka Inv 3143516; 11.08.24 30.00

askART, Inc 4775 11/25/24 2,500.00

10-1-5346
Online Database -
Winnetka

askART, Inc 2,500.00

Ellen Shubart 4776 11/25/24 150.00

10-0-5908 Programming - Adult Event Presentation 150.00

Image Systems & Business Solutions 4777 11/25/24 786.25

10-0-5766 Photocopier Leases Inv 410075 786.25

Image Systems & Business Solutions Leasing a Progr 4778 11/25/24 3,736.94

10-0-5766 Photocopier Leases Inv 588560961 3,736.94

AT&T 4779 11/27/24 473.45

10-0-5176 Internet Services Inv S663007007-24315 473.45

B.H. Suhr & Company, Inc. 4780 11/27/24 1,750.00

10-0-5882 Building Inv 2418 1,750.00

Chicago Hearing Society 4781 11/27/24 180.00

10-0-5732
Staff
Recognition/Events/Meeti
ngs

Inv C203452 180.00

Chicago Tribune 4782 11/27/24 839.16

10-1-5342 Periodicals-Winnetka Print/Digital 839.16

Claire Evans 4783 11/27/24 275.00

10-0-5908 Programming - Adult Event Presentation; 12.09.24 275.00

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Check Register
All Bank Accounts

November 1, 2024 - November 30, 2024

9
12



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number
Check
Date

Check
Amount

Comprise Technologies, Inc 4784 11/27/24 330.00

10-0-5136 Hardware Inv 2025-071 330.00

Engberg Anderson, Inc. 4785 11/27/24 6,354.24

10-0-5800 Capital Outlay Inv 24373700-2 6,354.24

Friends of the Library 4786 11/27/24 125.00

10-0-4895 Friends Donations Friends of the Library 125.00

Gary Wenstrup 4787 11/27/24 250.00

10-0-5908 Programming - Adult Event Presentation; 12.18.24 250.00

Illinois Office of the State Fire Marshal 4788 11/27/24 125.00

70-0-5749 Elevators Inv 5125146542 125.00

Kelly Dull 4789 11/27/24 400.00

10-0-5908 Programming - Adult Reimbursement 400.00

Laura Munoz 4790 11/27/24 544.04

10-0-5114 Professional Development Reimbursement 544.04

Leslie Goddard 4791 11/27/24 300.00

10-0-5908 Programming - Adult Event Presentation; 12.17.24 300.00

Lindemann Chimney Co. 4792 11/27/24 249.00

70-0-5799 Misc Services Inv 294284 249.00

Mark Swenson 4793 11/27/24 4.50

10-0-5114 Professional Development Reimbursement 4.50

Melissa Morgan 4794 11/27/24 25.00

10-0-5121 Office Supplies Reimbursement 25.00

Mikayla Contreras 4795 11/27/24 5.56

10-0-5114 Professional Development Reimbursement 5.56

NewsBank 4796 11/27/24 2,336.00

10-1-5346
Online Database -
Winnetka

Renewal RTRN1149134; 03.2025 -
02.2026

2,336.00

Tee Jay Service Company, Inc 4797 11/27/24 360.00

70-0-5755 Automatic Doors Inv 211632 360.00

The Book Stall 4798 11/27/24 20.80

10-2-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

Inv 546606 20.80

Wildbird Shack 4799 11/27/24 200.00

10-0-5908 Programming - Adult Event Presentation; 12.12.24 200.00

WT. Cox Subscriptions, Inc. 4800 11/27/24 50.40

10-1-5342 Periodicals-Winnetka Inv 314847 50.40

Catapult 18328 11/07/24 50.00

10-0-5115 Flexible Spending Account Inv 00156643 50.00

Ntiva 18329 11/07/24 2,205.00

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Check Register
All Bank Accounts

November 1, 2024 - November 30, 2024

10
13



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number
Check
Date

Check
Amount

10-0-5135 LAN Management Inv 249678 2,205.00

Lauterbach & Amen, LLP 18330 11/07/24 2,730.00

10-0-5131
Accounting and
Bookkeeping

Inv 94614 2,730.00

Warehouse Direct 18331 11/07/24 38.75

70-0-5725 Janitorial Supplies Inv 5812375-0 38.75

QUILL CORPORATION 18332 11/07/24 388.34

10-0-5121 Office Supplies Inv 41278062 388.34

BAKER & TAYLOR 18333 11/07/24 3,700.04

10-2-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Northfield

BAKER & TAYLOR 175.84

10-2-5440
Books-Fiction-Juv-
Northfield

BAKER & TAYLOR 210.67

10-1-5440
Books-Fiction-Juv-
Winnetka

BAKER & TAYLOR 613.07

10-0-5120 Library Supplies BAKER & TAYLOR 337.14

10-2-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

BAKER & TAYLOR 171.30

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

BAKER & TAYLOR 687.60

10-2-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

BAKER & TAYLOR 443.86

10-1-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

BAKER & TAYLOR 855.32

10-2-5441
Books-Non-Fiction-Juv-
Northfield

BAKER & TAYLOR 76.40

10-1-5441
Books-Non-Fiction-Juv-
Winnetka

BAKER & TAYLOR 128.84

MIDWEST TAPE 18334 11/07/24 1,549.56

10-0-5120 Library Supplies MIDWEST TAPE 106.56

10-2-5443 DVDs-Juv-Northfield MIDWEST TAPE 23.99

10-1-5343 DVDs-Adult-Winnetka MIDWEST TAPE 469.15

10-2-5343 DVDs-Adult-Northfield MIDWEST TAPE 170.03

10-1-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Winnetka

MIDWEST TAPE 103.98

10-2-5344
Audio Books-Adult-
Northfield

MIDWEST TAPE 137.97

10-1-5344
Audio Books-Adult-
Winnetka

MIDWEST TAPE 402.91

10-2-5344
Audio Books-Adult-
Northfield

Inv 506093908 134.97

Ntiva 18348 11/21/24 2,351.91

10-0-5135 LAN Management Inv 250721 2,351.91

PITNEY BOWES 18349 11/21/24 299.01

10-0-5123 Postage
Inv 3106916352; 09.30.24 -
12.29.24

299.01

DD Facility Services 18350 11/21/24 8,160.00

70-0-5748
Building Maintenance
Service

Inv 1058; 11.01.24 8,160.00

QUILL CORPORATION 18351 11/21/24 45.19

10-0-5121 Office Supplies Inv 41341761; 10.31.24 27.24

10-0-5121 Office Supplies Inv 41448649; 11.07.24 17.95

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Check Register
All Bank Accounts

November 1, 2024 - November 30, 2024

11
14



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number
Check
Date

Check
Amount

Kanopy 18352 11/21/24 729.00

10-1-5345 Books-Digital-Winnetka Inv 423955; 10.31.24 729.00

HOOPLA (MIDWEST TAPE) 18353 11/21/24 2,128.71

10-1-5345 Books-Digital-Winnetka Inv 506271590; 10.31.24 2,128.71

CDW-G 18354 11/21/24 244.72

10-0-5136 Hardware Inv AB3V78Y; 10.30.24 244.72

MERCHANTS DELIVERY SERVICE 18355 11/21/24 575.00

10-0-5138 Delivery Service 10.2024 575.00

VILLAGE OF NORTHFIELD 18356 11/21/24 6,028.48

70-2-5159 Northfield Lease Inv 1101LIB 6,028.48

Lauterbach & Amen, LLP 18357 11/21/24 1,725.00

10-0-5131
Accounting and
Bookkeeping

Inv 97755; 11.01.24 1,725.00

OVERDRIVE INC. 18358 11/21/24 27,310.60

10-1-5345 Books-Digital-Winnetka Inv 01018CP24340789 6,490.09

10-1-5345 Books-Digital-Winnetka Inv 01018MA24337243 3,772.11

10-1-5345 Books-Digital-Winnetka Inv 01018MA24341732 10,578.32

10-1-5345 Books-Digital-Winnetka Inv 01018CP24340092 6,470.08

DEMCO 18359 11/21/24 516.14

10-1-5439 Kits Inv 7564688; 11.07.24 516.14

BAKER & TAYLOR 18360 11/21/24 9,741.46

10-2-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

BAKER & TAYLOR 919.84

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

BAKER & TAYLOR 2,466.08

10-0-5120 Library Supplies BAKER & TAYLOR 787.72

10-2-5440
Books-Fiction-Juv-
Northfield

BAKER & TAYLOR 512.93

10-1-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Winnetka

BAKER & TAYLOR 597.04

10-1-5440
Books-Fiction-Juv-
Winnetka

BAKER & TAYLOR 1,060.70

10-2-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

BAKER & TAYLOR 690.43

10-1-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

BAKER & TAYLOR 1,979.78

10-2-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Northfield

BAKER & TAYLOR 333.24

10-2-5441
Books-Non-Fiction-Juv-
Northfield

BAKER & TAYLOR 166.43

10-1-5343 DVDs-Adult-Winnetka BAKER & TAYLOR 227.27

MIDWEST TAPE 18361 11/21/24 2,950.66

10-0-5120 Library Supplies MIDWEST TAPE 217.64

10-1-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Winnetka

MIDWEST TAPE 123.98

10-1-5343 DVDs-Adult-Winnetka MIDWEST TAPE 1,093.62

10-2-5343 DVDs-Adult-Northfield MIDWEST TAPE 416.67

10-1-5344
Audio Books-Adult-
Winnetka

MIDWEST TAPE 748.83

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Check Register
All Bank Accounts

November 1, 2024 - November 30, 2024

12
15



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number
Check
Date

Check
Amount

10-2-5344
Audio Books-Adult-
Northfield

MIDWEST TAPE 349.92

PITNEY BOWES 18371 11/30/24 100.00

10-0-5123 Postage ACH 100.00

COMCAST 18372 11/30/24 71.95

10-0-5176 Internet Services 10.11.21 - 11.10.24 71.95

Peerless Network 18373 11/30/24 41.33

10-0-5176 Internet Services Peerless Network 41.33

NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTIONS 18374 11/30/24 1,225.00

10-0-2040 457 withholding
NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT
SOLUTIONS

1,225.00

COMCAST 18375 11/30/24 434.45

10-0-5176 Internet Services 11-20.24 - 12.19.24 434.45

NICOR 18376 11/30/24 47.67

10-2-5174 Natural Gas - Northfield 08.22.24 - 09.23.24 47.67

NORTH SHORE GAS 18377 11/30/24 292.88

10-1-5174 Natural Gas - Winnetka 09.25.24 - 10.22.24 292.88

PITNEY BOWES 18378 11/30/24 100.00

10-0-5123 Postage PITNEY BOWES 100.00

COMED 18379 11/30/24 966.20

10-2-5171 Electricity - Northfield 08.19.24 - 09.18.24 966.20

PITNEY BOWES 18380 11/30/24 100.00

10-0-5123 Postage PITNEY BOWES 100.00

VILLAGE OF NORTHFIELD 18381 11/30/24 57.90

10-2-5172 Water - Northfield VILLAGE OF NORTHFIELD 57.90

NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTIONS 18382 11/30/24 1,225.00

10-0-2040 457 withholding
NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT
SOLUTIONS

1,225.00

VILLAGE OF WINNETKA 18383 11/30/24 4,032.25

10-1-5172 Water - Winnetka VILLAGE OF WINNETKA 354.45

10-1-5172 Water - Winnetka VILLAGE OF WINNETKA 26.12

10-1-5172 Water - Winnetka VILLAGE OF WINNETKA 71.01

10-1-5172 Water - Winnetka VILLAGE OF WINNETKA 117.06

10-1-5172 Water - Winnetka VILLAGE OF WINNETKA 2.00

10-1-5173 Storm Sewer - Winnetka VILLAGE OF WINNETKA 139.71

10-1-5171 Electricity - Winnetka VILLAGE OF WINNETKA 3,438.48

10-1-5171 Electricity - Winnetka VILLAGE OF WINNETKA -273.60

10-1-5172 Water - Winnetka VILLAGE OF WINNETKA 58.37

10-1-5172 Water - Winnetka VILLAGE OF WINNETKA 98.65

First Bankcard 18384 11/30/24 15,129.53

10-0-5732
Staff
Recognition/Events/Meeti
ngs

Dombrowski - Maddy Party Treats 12.25

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Check Register
All Bank Accounts

November 1, 2024 - November 30, 2024

13
16



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number
Check
Date

Check
Amount

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Dombrowski - Dinner for ILA
Conference

16.07

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Dombrowski - Lunch for ILA
Conference

13.17

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Dombrowski - Breakfast for ILA
Conference

26.50

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Dombrowski - Lunch for ILA
Conference

18.24

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Dombrowski - Breakfast for ILA
Conference

26.16

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Dombrowski - Breakfast for ILA
Conference

16.34

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Dombrowski - Hotel for ILA
Conference

541.65

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Dombrowski - Strategic Planning
Workshop

309.00

10-0-5732
Staff
Recognition/Events/Meeti
ngs

Dombrowski - Lunch for Employee
30-Year Anniversary

39.16

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Dombrowski - ILA Legislative Meetup
Breakfast

55.00

10-0-5719 Board Expenses Dombrowski - Board Snacks 116.25

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Karwowska - Prof Dev A Urich ALSC
FY 2425

10.00

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Karwowska - Prof Dev A Urich ALSC
FY 2425

24.01

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Karwowska - Prof Dev A Urich ALSC
FY 2425

53.80

10-1-5439 Kits Karwowska - STEAM Kit replacement 6.95

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Karwowska - Prof Dev A Urich ALSC
FY 2425

7.16

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Karwowska - Prof Dev A Urich ALSC
FY 2425

14.14

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Programming 19.99

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Karwowska - Prof Dev A Urich ALSC
FY 2425

10.00

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Karwowska - Prof Dev A Urich ALSC
FY 2425

13.35

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Karwowska - Prof Dev A Urich ALSC
FY 2425

811.40

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Programming 31.26

10-0-5884 Equipment/Furniture
Karwowska - Furniture / equipment
(nfld)

139.99

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Programming 83.97

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Programming 58.39

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Programming 6.74

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Programming 11.88

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Programming 25.65

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Programming 31.26

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Programming 179.67

10-0-5308 Reading Programs
Karwowska - Winter Reading Kids
Prizes

280.00

10-1-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Tonies (Juv audio) 7.94

10-2-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Tonies (Juv audio) 7.94

10-1-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Tonies (Juv audio) 11.99

10-2-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Tonies (Juv audio) 11.98

10-1-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Tonies (Juv audio) 14.99

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Check Register
All Bank Accounts

November 1, 2024 - November 30, 2024

14
17



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number
Check
Date

Check
Amount

10-2-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Tonies (Juv audio) 14.98

10-1-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Tonies (Juv audio) 17.94

10-2-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Tonies (Juv audio) 17.95

10-1-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Tonies (Juv audio) 43.48

10-2-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Tonies (Juv audio) 43.47

10-1-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Tonies (Juv audio) 62.86

10-2-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Tonies (Juv audio) 62.85

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Programming 18.49

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Programming 71.88

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Programming 35.99

10-1-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Tonies (Juv audio) 35.92

10-2-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Tonies (Juv audio) 32.93

10-1-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Tonies (Juv audio) 126.13

10-2-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Tonies (Juv audio) 126.12

10-1-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Tonies (Juv audio) 9.00

10-2-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Tonies (Juv audio) 8.99

10-1-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Tonies (Juv audio) 10.00

10-2-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Tonies (Juv audio) 9.99

10-1-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Videogames Youth 59.99

10-2-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Videogames Youth 59.99

10-1-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Tonies (Juv audio) 307.13

10-2-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Tonies (Juv audio) 307.12

10-1-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Tonies (Juv audio) 397.44

10-2-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Tonies (Juv audio) 397.43

10-1-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Videogames Youth 29.99

10-2-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Videogames Youth 29.99

10-1-5445
Video Games-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Videogames Youth 34.29

10-2-5445
Video Games- Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Videogames Youth 34.29

10-1-5445
Video Games-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Videogames Youth 89.98

10-2-5445
Video Games- Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Videogames Youth 89.98

10-1-5445
Video Games-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Videogames Youth 108.98

10-2-5445
Video Games- Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Videogames Youth 108.98

10-1-5445
Video Games-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Videogames Youth 39.99

10-2-5445
Video Games- Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Videogames Youth 39.99

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Check Register
All Bank Accounts

November 1, 2024 - November 30, 2024

15
18



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number
Check
Date

Check
Amount

10-1-5445
Video Games-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Videogames Youth 59.99

10-2-5445
Video Games- Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Videogames Youth 59.99

10-1-5445
Video Games-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Tonies (Juv audio) 9.00

10-2-5445
Video Games- Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Tonies (Juv audio) 8.99

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Karwowska - Prof Dev T Malinowski
ILA FY 2425

12.06

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Programming 9.99

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Karwowska - Prof Dev T Malinowski
ILA FY 2425

22.13

10-1-5445
Video Games-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Videogames Youth 62.98

10-2-5445
Video Games- Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Videogames Youth 62.98

10-1-5445
Video Games-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Videogames Youth 149.83

10-2-5445
Video Games- Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Videogames Youth 149.83

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Karwowska - Prof Dev T Malinowski
ILA FY 2425

39.90

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Karwowska - Prof Dev T Malinowski
ILA FY 2425

602.97

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Programming 71.96

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Library supplies 17.98

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Programming 18.33

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Programming 29.99

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Programming 38.52

10-1-5445
Video Games-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Videogames Youth 42.99

10-2-5445
Video Games- Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Videogames Youth 42.99

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Programming 25.49

10-0-5898 Miscellaneous Karwowska - overlimit fee 39.00

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Programming 25.99

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Programming 29.99

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Programming 58.92

10-0-5121 Office Supplies Karwowska - Janitorial supplies 75.92

10-1-5445
Video Games-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Videogames Youth 62.98

10-2-5445
Video Games- Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Videogames Youth 62.98

10-0-5120 Library Supplies Karwowska - Youth Programming 394.89

10-1-5445
Video Games-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - CC rewards. -50.00

10-1-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Tonies (Juv audio) -9.00

10-2-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Tonies (Juv audio) -8.99

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Programming 19.99

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

Mall - Materials 25.19

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

Mall - Materials 56.67

10-0-5120 Library Supplies Mall - Tech Services supplies 8.99

10-1-5342 Periodicals-Winnetka Mall - Materials 99.00

10-0-5134 Software Mall - Virtual event hosting 127.97

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

Mall - Materials 28.96

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

Mall - Refund for Materials, 9/17 -57.40

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Check Register
All Bank Accounts

November 1, 2024 - November 30, 2024

16
19



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number
Check
Date

Check
Amount

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

Mall - Materials 26.98

10-0-5120 Library Supplies Mall - Tech Services supplies 114.17

10-1-5445
Video Games-Juv-
Winnetka

Mall - Materials 29.99

10-2-5445
Video Games- Juv-
Northfield

Mall - Materials 29.99

10-0-5882 Building Mall - Bird food 24.66

10-0-5908 Programming - Adult
Mall - Programming supplies (prize
for Halloween Horror Trivia Night,
10/30) + Materials

17.74

10-1-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

Mall - Programming supplies (prize
for Halloween Horror Trivia Night,
10/30) + Materials

17.74

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

Mall - Materials 35.76

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Mall - Youth programming supplies 38.77

10-0-5908 Programming - Adult
Mall - Programming supplies (prize
for Halloween Horror Trivia Night,
10/30)

38.94

10-0-5732
Staff
Recognition/Events/Meeti
ngs

Melero - Farewell party 255.75

10-0-5122 Breakroom Supplies Melero - Dish washer soap 16.39

10-0-5732
Staff
Recognition/Events/Meeti
ngs

Melero - Staff Appreciation 84.32

10-0-5732
Staff
Recognition/Events/Meeti
ngs

Melero - Staff Appreciation 22.33

10-0-5121 Office Supplies Melero - Ink Replacement 119.28

10-0-5122 Breakroom Supplies Melero - Sugar 19.99

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Melero - Youth pumkins 178.10

10-0-5121 Office Supplies Melero - Bank Bags 25.99

10-0-5121 Office Supplies
Morgan - office supplies - storage
shelving unit

107.99

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth
Morgan - Programming - Youth -
treasure chest prizes

4.14

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio
Morgan - Programming - Studio -
desiccant for filament

2.00

10-0-5121 Office Supplies
Morgan - office supplies - storage
bins

137.45

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth
Morgan - Programming - Youth -
haunted houses, cozy cottages,
edible candy sushi

217.54

10-0-5732
Staff
Recognition/Events/Meeti
ngs

Morgan - Staff
Recognition/Events/Meetings -
welcome back Amelia, farewell Nancy

33.10

10-0-5121 Office Supplies
Morgan - office supplies - storage
bins

69.98

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth
Morgan - Programming - Youth -
sticker murals and bookmarks

181.32

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth
Morgan - Programming - Youth -
return re: treasure chest prizes

-4.99

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth
Morgan - Programming - Youth - art
play supplies

134.33

10-0-5121 Office Supplies
Morgan - office supplies - storage
bins

74.99

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth
Morgan - Programming - Youth -
replacement toys & family science

92.55

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth
Morgan - Programming - Youth -
replacement toy

14.99

10-0-5121 Office Supplies
Morgan - office supplies - Tul
notebook

9.99

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Check Register
All Bank Accounts

November 1, 2024 - November 30, 2024

17
20



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number
Check
Date

Check
Amount

10-0-5908 Programming - Adult
Morgan - Programming - Adult -
replacement item for bridge

27.95

10-0-5121 Office Supplies
Morgan - office supplies - shelves
above desk

9.99

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth
Morgan - Programming - Youth -
family science, edible candy sushi

25.71

10-0-5121 Office Supplies
Morgan - office supplies - storage
items & label maker

112.97

10-0-5732
Staff
Recognition/Events/Meeti
ngs

Munoz - Staff Incentive 14.39

10-0-5121 Office Supplies
Munoz - Office supplies , planner
calendar refill

26.98

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio
Munoz - programming - polymer clay
earrings supplies

47.97

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Munoz - Electronics Screwdriver Set 27.99

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio
Munoz - Library of Things -
Replacement Metal Detector Bag

36.11

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio
Munoz - Library of Things -
Replacement Metal Detector

71.00

10-0-5732
Staff
Recognition/Events/Meeti
ngs

Munoz - Department Meeting 36.90

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio
Munoz - programming - countdown
calendar

7.99

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Munoz - Library of Puzzles - Puzzles 25.94

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio
Munoz - Library of Puzzles - Puzzle
mats

74.85

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Munoz - Mini Heat Press 22.99

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Munoz - Mug Heat Press 135.99

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Munoz - Sublimation Mugs (36ct) 65.99

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Munoz - 3D Printer - PINK filament 19.99

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Munoz - 3D Printer - BLACK filament 19.99

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Munoz - Continuing Education -
Pumping Station (subscription
makerspace)

65.00

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio
Munoz - Sublimation&Vinyl Supplies -
sublimation sheets, tote bags, puffy
HTV, tshirt ruler guide

153.09

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Munoz - Cricut supplies 10.61

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Munoz - Continuing Education -
CORE Conference

229.00

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio
Munoz - Epilog Mini - Replacement
Air Filter

322.66

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio
Munoz - programming - pumpkin
decorating contest supplies and gift
card prize

127.56

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio
Munoz - Emboridery - Stabilizer
backing

10.99

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Munoz - Embroidery - WHITE Thread 7.99

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Munoz - 3D printer - RED filament 15.99

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio
Munoz - programming - pumpkin pie
garland

9.99

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio
Munoz - programming - polymer clay
earrings supplies

24.28

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Munoz - Flexible Rulers 7.99

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Munoz - Heat Resistent Tape 12.99

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio
Munoz - Distilled Water for
Emergency Eye Wash Station

27.95

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio
Munoz - 3D Printer - RAINBOW
Filament

34.99

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio
Munoz - Embroidery - Cut Away
Stabilizer, Mesh Stabilizer

35.94

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Check Register
All Bank Accounts

November 1, 2024 - November 30, 2024

18
21



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number
Check
Date

Check
Amount

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Munoz - 4GB Flash Drives (50ct) 72.00

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio
Munoz - programming - paper
wreath supllies

468.66

10-0-5114 Professional Development Quish - Training Seminar 79.00

10-0-5134 Software Swenson - Microsoft Entra Licenses 7.20

10-0-5134 Software
Swenson - Microsoft Power BI
Licenses

30.00

10-0-5134 Software
Swenson - Microsoft Office 365
Licenses

192.50

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Swenson - Airline tickets for CORE
Forum

150.94

10-0-5134 Software
Swenson - Microsoft Office for Public
PCs

468.00

10-0-5177 Website/Platform Fees Swenson - Content Website Hosting 5.00

10-0-5177 Website/Platform Fees Swenson - Content Website Backup 1.22

10-0-5136 Hardware Swenson - iPad for Adult Services 349.56

10-0-5136 Hardware Swenson - Tax Refund for iPad -20.56

10-0-5134 Software
Swenson - LastPass for Teams
Annual Renewal

432.00

10-0-5134 Software Swenson - Creative Cloud Licenses 314.40

10-0-5177 Website/Platform Fees
Swenson - Renewal of
kenilworthlibrarydistrict.com

18.92

Check List Total 157,785.90

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Check Register
All Bank Accounts

November 1, 2024 - November 30, 2024

19
22



DECEMBER 2024 DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

STAFF UPDATES 
Anniversaries: Jeremy Farrar, Social Media & Marketing Specialist, 11/15 (2 years). 

STAFF SHOUT OUTS 
• Our Marketing & PR Team (Sarah, Kathy, & Jeremy) received a shoutout from Super Library Marketing

Guru Angela Hursh on her November 6th episode for our marketing efforts over the last 2 years. Episode
link here.

• Executive Director Monica and Trustees Travis, Melissa, and Sarah M. were interviewed for an article on
the Library District’s 50th anniversary party that appeared in the Record North Shore. Article link here.

PROGRAMMING 

Youth  
Category NOV24/25 NOV23/24 Mo. % +/- FY24-25 YTD FY23-24 YTD FY % +/- 
Programs 56 56 0.00% 275 259 6.18% 
Live Attendees 1,926 1,588 21.28% 9,110 7,393 23.22% 
Passive Programming 6,037 4,661 29.52% 23,977 19,592 22.38% 

Highlights 
Dinosaur Discoveries 40 attendees joined us to get a glimpse of what it’s like to go on a 

Paleontological dig with authentic dinosaur fossils.  
DiNovember Dinosaur Dig/Dig Jr. 63 attendees joined us across two sessions to talk dinosaurs, learn about 

fossils, and experiment with excavation basics.  
Cooks + Books: Dragons Love 
Tacos  

Sticky Fingers Cooking provided a fun cooking class for 9 attendees that 
included Dragon Party Street Tacos, Cilantro Lime Rice, and Salsa. 

Adults 
Category NOV24/25 NOV23/24 Mo. % +/- FY24-25 YTD FY23-24 YTD FY % +/- 
Programs 17 15 13.33% 104 87 19.54% 
Live Attendees 322 417 -22.78% 1,938 2,152 -9.94%
Recording Attendees 191 198 -3.54% 1,078 1,382 -22.00%

Highlights 
Grace and Grit: A Journey Through the 
Lives of the Princesses of Wales (V) 

82 attendees enjoyed an illuminating historical lecture on the women 
who have held this esteemed title. 

Theories of Solar System Formation 
(V) 

34 attendees explored the intriguing theories devised to explain the 
formation of our family of planets. 

(IP)= In-Person Program    (V)=Virtual Program 

Studio 
Category NOV24/25 NOV23/24 Mo. % +/- FY24-25 YTD FY23-24 YTD FY % +/- 
1:1s 231 285 -18.95% 1,145 1,409 -18.74%
Programs 10 18 -44.44% 54 79 -31.65%

23

https://superlibrarymarketing.com/2024/11/06/librarymarketingshow265/
https://www.therecordnorthshore.org/2024/12/02/winnetka-northfield-library-district-will-celebrate-half-a-century-on-saturday-before-turning-the-page/


Attendees 34 67 -49.25% 291 486 -40.12%

Highlights 
Personalized Family Shirts 8 attendees created holiday themed t-shirts using vinyl decals and our 

sublimation printer.  
Polymer Clay Earrings 7 attendees learned 

how to use colorful clays 
to design and craft unique earrings 
to keep or give as gifts. 

Thanksgiving Table Decor 6 attendees crafted  
charming Thanksgiving  
centerpieces using flowers  
and other materials for their 
holiday tables. 

Community Engagement
Category NOV24/25 NOV23/24 Mo. % +/- FY24-25 YTD FY23-24 YTD FY % +/- 
Youth Events 0 0 - 6 11 -45.45%
Adult Events 2 2 0.00% 12 24 -50.00%
Family Events 2 2 0.00% 8 8 0.00% 

Total Events 4 4 0.00% 26 43 -39.53%
Youth Attendance 0 0 - 340 345 -1.45%
Adult Attendance 20 20 0.00% 417 486 -14.20%
Family Attendance 83 125 -33.60% 834 1,425 -41.47%

Total Attendance 103 145 -28.97% 1,591 2,256 -29.48%

Highlights 
Skokie School – 6th grade 
project 

WNPLD sourced 60 books about geology topics to supplement 6th graders reading of 
the book Trapped by Marc Aronson about the Chilean mine collapse in 2010.       

Village of Winnetka – 
Small Business Saturday 

73 people enjoyed winter-themed activities at the Winnetka Library during the 
Village of Winnetka’s Small Business Saturday event.  There was also a Used Book 
Sale, benefiting the Friends of the Library.   

SERVICES 

Visitors 
Building NOV24/25 NOV23/24 Mo. % +/- FY24-25 YTD FY23-24 YTD FY % +/- 

Winnetka 11,592 10,857 6.77% 58,159 53,436 8.84% 

Northfield 4,532 4,135 9.60% 22,878 21,206 7.88% 

Total 16,124 14,992 7.55% 81,037 74,642 8.57% 

Virtual 218 280 -22.14% 1,066 1,387 -23.14%

Total 16,342 15,272 7.01% 82,103 76,029 7.99% 
Note: Closed on 11/28 and 11/29 and early closing at 5pm on 11/27 for Thanksgiving holiday.    

24



 
  

Cardholders (by Household) 
Community Number of Households Households w/Cards % Households w/Cards 
Winnetka 4,242 3,192 75.25% 
Northfield 2,340 1,412 60.34% 

Total District 6,582 4,604 69.95% 
Kenilworth 789 215 27.25% 

Total 7,371 4,819 65.38% 
 
Desk Questions 

Category NOV24/25 NOV23/24 Mo. % +/- FY24-25 YTD FY23-24 YTD FY % +/- 

Adult 1,980 2,074 -4.53% 10,924 11,653 -6.26% 

Youth 722 510 41.57% 2,825 2,456 15.02% 

Digital Services 64 82 -21.95% 323 419 -22.91% 

Total 2,766 2,666 3.75% 14,072 14,528 -3.14% 

 
TECHNOLOGY 

Computer Usage 
Location NOV24/25 NOV23/24 Mo. % +/- FY24-25 YTD FY23-24 YTD FY % +/- 
Winnetka 338 352 -3.98% 2,111 2,274 -7.17% 
Northfield 185 210 -11.90% 1,155 1,143 1.05% 

Total 523 562 -6.94% 3,266 3,417 -4.42% 
 
Hotspot Usage 

Location NOV24/25 NOV23/24 Mo. % +/- FY24-25 YTD FY23-24 YTD FY % +/- 
Winnetka Sessions 12,465 23,246 -46.38% 65,323 104,840 -37.69% 
Northfield Sessions 2,517 3,910 -35.63% 10,281 20,554 -49.98% 

Total  14,982 27,156 -44.83% 75,604 125,394 -39.71% 
Winnetka Bandwidth 223 GB 606 GB -63.20% 1,154 GB 2,843 GB -59.41% 

25



Northfield Bandwidth 116 GB 115 GB 0.87% 483 GB 540 GB -10.56% 
Total  339 GB 721 GB -52.98% 1,637 GB 3,383 GB -51.61% 

 
Website Visits 

Activity NOV24/25 NOV23/24 Mo. % +/- FY24-25 YTD FY23-24 YTD FY % +/- 
Total Visits 10,628 10,512 1.10% 53,275 55,083 -3.28% 
Unique Visits 6,382 6,553 -2.61% 31,420 34,245 -8.25% 

 
MARKETING 

Email Subscribers  
NOV24/25 % Cardholders NOV23/24 Open Rate Click Rate 

10,425 111.22% 10,740 56% 2% 
Open Rate: % who opened the email. Click Rate: % who clicked on links inside the email.  
 
Social Media Activity 

Platform NOV24/25 Impressions  NOV24/25 Reach NOV24/25 Engagements 
YouTube 33,375 1,037 N/A 
Facebook 3,045 2,963 51 
Instagram 4,093 100 226 
LinkedIn 401 215 37 

Total 40,914 4,315 314 
Impressions: # of times the content has been seen/viewed.  
Reach: # of people seeing content for the first time.  
Engagements: # of comments, likes, shares, & click-throughs.  

COLLECTIONS 

Physical Adult (By Location) 
Location NOV24/25 NOV23/24 Mo. % +/- FY24-25 YTD FY23-24 YTD FY % +/- 
Winnetka 9,624 9,578 0.48% 51,825 51,296 1.03% 
Northfield 3,350 3,538 -5.31% 18,462 19,109 -3.39% 

Physical Youth (By Location) 
Location NOV24/25 NOV23/24 Mo. % +/- FY24-25 YTD FY23-24 YTD FY % +/- 
Winnetka 15,332 14,055 9.09% 70,848 72,889 -2.80% 
Northfield 2,783 3,229 -13.81% 15,557 16,617 -6.38% 

Physical Miscellaneous 
Lending Type NOV24/25 NOV23/24 Mo. % +/- FY24-25 YTD FY23-24 YTD FY % +/- 
Kenilworth Patrons 755 899 -16.02% 3,723 5,870 -36.58% 
Borrowed from Other Libraries 1,534 1,718 -10.71% 8,013 8,599 -6.81% 

 

 

 

26



Physical Adult (By Type) 
Material Type NOV24/25 NOV23/24 Mo. % +/- FY24-25 YTD FY23-24 YTD FY % +/- 
Books 7,729 7,755 -0.34% 42,335 43,378 -2.40% 
 Book - Fiction 4,272 4,390 -2.69% 24,308 25,496 -4.66% 
 Book - Nonfiction 3,457 3,365 2.73% 18,027 17,882 0.81% 
Audiobook - CD 148 194 -23.71% 745 1,137 -34.48% 
Music CD 60 114 -47.37% 313 409 -23.47% 
Playaway 19 25 -24.00% 102 149 -31.54% 
DVD/Blu-Ray 2,304 2,612 -11.79% 11,863 13,108 -9.50% 
Magazine 229 276 -17.03% 1,041 1,207 -13.75% 
Videogame 33 20 65.00% 213 95 124.21% 
Computing Device 11 3 266.67% 36 25 44.00% 
Library of Things 30 28 7.14% 126 109 15.60% 
Other 5 4 25.00% 496 11 4409.09% 
Non-CCS ILL 52 20 160.00% 245 146 67.81% 
Sent Out 2,354 2,065 14.00% 12,772 10,631 20.14% 
Studio Equipment 142 0 - 0 0 - 

Total 13,116 13,116 0.00% 70,287 70,405 -0.17% 
 
Physical Youth (By Type) 

Material Type NOV24/25 NOV23/24 Mo. % +/- FY24-25 YTD FY23-24 YTD FY % +/- 
Books 12,971 12,612 2.85% 64,026 68,152 -6.05% 
 Book - Fiction 10,696 10,652 0.41% 53,849 57,607 -6.52% 
 Book - Nonfiction 2,275 1,960 16.07% 10,177 10,545 -3.49% 
Audiobook - CD 0 4 -100.00% 3 29 -89.66% 
Playaway 235 183 28.42% 1,242 1,260 -1.43% 
DVD/Blu-Ray 549 687 -20.09% 3,534 4,014 -11.96% 
Videogame 366 206 77.67% 1,669 1,236 35.03% 
Computing Device 85 97 -12.37% 327 317 3.15% 
Vox Reader 394 356 10.67% 1,809 1,696 6.66% 
Youth Kits 92 62 48.39% 371 334 11.08% 
Other 13 27 -51.85% 51 105 -51.43% 
In House Circulation 3,410 3,049 11.84% 13,365 12,361 8.12% 

Total 18,115 17,284 4.81% 86,405 89,506 -3.46% 

MTD Total Physical Circulation 
NOV24/25 Physical Circulation NOV23/24 Physical Circulation Net Change 

31,231 30,400 2.73% 
   

YTD Total Physical Circulation 
FY24-25 YTD Physical Circulation FY23-24 YTD Physical Circulation Net Change 

156,692 159,911 -2.01% 

 

 

27



 

Digital Circulation 
Material Type NOV24/25 NOV23/24 Mo. % +/- FY24-25 YTD FY23-24 YTD FY % +/- 
eBooks 4,838 4,498 7.56% 24,746 22,204 11.45% 
eAudiobooks 4,408 4,043 9.03% 22,796 19,478 17.03% 
eMagazines 2,262 2,701 -16.25% 11,178 7,886 41.74% 
eVideos 578 403 43.42% 2,594 2,339 10.90% 
eMusic 50 42 19.05% 183 231 -20.78% 

Total 12,136 11,687 3.84% 61,497 52,138 17.95% 
 

 
 
 
 
 

28



MTD Total District Circulation 
NOV24/25 District Circulation NOV23/24 District Circulation Net Change 

43,225 42,087 2.70% 

 
 
YTD Total District Circulation 

FY24-25 YTD District Circulation FY23-24 YTD District Circulation Net Change 
218,189 212,049 2.90% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

29



IMPACT STORIES 
Branch Services 
Collections 

• The youth Di-November display inspired grown-ups who checked out our adult nonfiction dinosaur 
books. 

• A patron complimented our new non-fiction collection by saying, “You are doing an excellent job 
because I can always find something interesting.” 

• “Books are my escape, so I am very grateful I have the ability to come here and get them from you.” 
• “You have the coolest toys in the children’s section – so many enriching, Montessori style.” 

  
Tech Help 

• A low vision patron was very pleased with Branch Services Librarian Lisa’s assistance using the Libby 
app and commented, “You’re always so helpful here.” 

• After learning how to access a Chicago Tribune article from 1949, a patron said, “That was so helpful, 
and on a Friday evening when you’re probably ready to close up shop and go home.  Thank you so much, you 
were lovely.” 

 
Reader’s Advisory 

• A patron thanked Branch Services Librarian Lisa for recommending We Solve Murders by Richard 
Osmond and pointed out that he is now reading The Thursday Murder Club by the same author. 

• A patron was very pleased with a Northfield staff member’s recommendation of The Crossover by 
Kwame Alexander. It was a big hit with the junior high students. 

 
Facilities 

• “When I first moved here, I thought. ‘Aw, this place is so small,’ but then I came to realize that it’s cozy and 
much easier to use than bigger libraries.” 

• “I love this little library. I used to come here all the time when my son was younger.” 
• “This is my favorite library. For such a small place, you pack in so much good stuff. My home library is fine, 

but this is really great.” 
• “Nice facility you guys have got here – it's my first time being here.”  
• “I love coming to this library.  I walk with a cane, and it’s so nice that I can just drive right up to your front 

door and walk in.  At other places, I have to use stairs.”  
 
Programming 

• Feedback for Chicago: An Illustrated History (Winter Edition!) (IP):“Ellen Shubart is an excellent 
presenter and a wonderful source of information about everything Chicago and suburbs. It is always a treat 
to attend her presentations.” 

• Feedback for Brush Calligraphy with Audrey Ra (IP): 
o “This is the second program I have participated in with Audrey Ra and I absolutely enjoyed it! Keep 

those events coming!” 
o “This was a very well-organized class. She is a good educator and would love to take more library 

classes from her.” 
o “Excellent introduction to brush calligraphy- basic strokes, materials and terminology. Audrey was 

personable and patient!!” 
• Feedback for Holiday Cookie Decorating (IP): 

o “Kelly is super! Well prepared, very informative, with lots of supplies available for the students and 
started and ended on time.” 

o “I learn something new each time. Thanks for having such wonderful programs.” 

30



• Feedback for Artemis: Returning to the Moon (V):“The speaker was very knowledgeable and well-versed 
in the topic. Her presentation was fantastic, especially because she gave us the history of moon exploration 
and where NASA is going with the Artemis explorations. Her graphics were exceptionally helpful when she 
talked about the crew traveling there and how much there still is to learn about the moon—our planetary 
cousin.” 

   
Youth Services 
General Comments 

• “You saved the day by having something for us to do today!”  
• “My daughters are so excited for the Winter Reading program!” 
• “Thank you for listening...this morning. It was a hard morning, and it was really nice to have a kind 

listening ear.”  
• “Lately I’ve been coming back, and everyone has been helpful and nice to deal with!” 

Programming 
• Patrons were appreciative of us adding Spanish and other languages to our existing Storytimes 
• Feedback for Dinosaur Discoveries 

o “He was fantastic! Great with kids and adults. Bring him back!” 
o “The paleontologist did a great job tailoring his presentation to a younger audience than expected. My 

6-year-old was enthralled and my 3-year-old enjoyed it too!” 
• Feedback for Cooks + Books: Dragons Love Tacos: “Both of my girls ABSOLUTELY loved this program and 

asked what the NEXT book and meal would be! We’d love to come again if you host another kids cooking 
event!” 
 

Adult Services 
Programming 

• Feedback for Grace and Grit: A Journey Through the Lives of the Princesses of Wales: 
o “Very interesting program, hope to have more of this type of presentations. Thank you very much. 

Having presentations on zoom are more convenient so I don't have to drive to the library in person, also 
the library can invite diverse types of presenters near and far.” 

o “This event offered a GREAT distraction for election night, when I--and so many of my friends and 
family--were feeling anxious. I appreciate the library offering some counterprogramming to all the 
political stuff that was on tv. It was very therapeutic for me, and I appreciate the foresight into offering a 
feel-good program during this time!” 

o “Thank you for offering this informative presentation and thank you to the library for offering such a 
great variety of zoom programs!” 

o “Very informative. I would also love to see events on ancient history/architecture. Looking forward to the 
event on the Vatican Museum!” 

o “I so appreciate the variety of library programs that you offer.” 

Feedback for The Annuity Blueprint: "Ronald did an excellent job of defining the different types of Annuities -- the 
benefits and concerns of each kind. He has a great grasp of information, presented it, and thoughtfully answered 
questions. I recommend him for another seminar at the library.” 

Feedback for Wild West Africa: "This was much better than I expected. I definitely would not want to go there, but 
it was really cool learning about it and seeing it via the speaker. He is excellent.” 

 
Digital Services 

31



• A local patron has been making frequent use of our newest laser cutter to add personalized touches to 
his out-of-state cottages. He’s expressed his enthusiasm for the Studio’s facilities and mentioned he 
has become a vocal advocate for the Studio by sharing his positive experiences with friends & 
colleagues.  

 
• A patron visited us a few days before Thanksgiving to personalize her son’s outfit with embroidered 

initials. She was delighted with the results and thanked the staff multiple times for our patience and 
knowledge.  

 
General Comments 

• “Annie is amazing!!!! So helpful, kind, and knowledgeable!” 
 
Patron Services 

• Patron Services Assistant Monica B. noticed a patron having difficulty checking out a huge stack of 
items, so she invited him to come over to the lobby desk and proceeded to complete the checkout. He 
then needed help reconciling all the items out on his account (he had just returned 46 and checked out 
48 more) and was concerned that he would be leaving the library with items that weren’t properly 
checked out for him. Based on this, Monica checked everything back in, searched the back room to find 
a missing item, then checked the new items back out to him. The patron was thrilled with Monica’s 
proactive approach to going above and beyond to ensure his account accurately reflected his materials.  

• Feedback from Patron Survey Kiosk: “Happy with all employees and selection and availability. Appreciate 
no fines and extending time out.” 

 

 

32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



 

Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2024 Review Page 1 of 18 

 

Serving Our Public 4.0: Standards for Illinois Public Libraries 
☒ = standard met 

☒ = standard partially met but needs improvement 

☐ = standard not met 

 
Chapter 1 - Core Standards 
☒The library provides uniformly gracious, friendly, timely, and reliable service to all users. 

☒The library is established and operates in compliance with Chapter 75 of the Illinois Compiled 
Statutes. 

☒The library is governed by a board of trustees elected or appointed and constituted in 
compliance with the relevant sections of Chapter 75 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes. 

☒The library complies with all other state and federal laws that affect library operations. (See 
Appendix A) 

☒The library adopts and adheres to the principles set forth in the American Library Association’s 
(ALA) Library Bill of Rights and other ALA intellectual freedom statements and interpretations. 

☒The library adopts and adheres to the Code of Ethics of the American Library Association. The 
library adopts and adheres to the Public Library Trustee Ethics Statement, developed by United 
for Libraries, a division of ALA. 

☒The board of trustees adopts written bylaws that outline the board’s purpose and operational 
procedures and address conflict-of-interest issues. 

☒The board of trustees appoints a qualified librarian as library administrator and delegates active 
management of the library to the library administrator. (For the purposes of this document, a 
qualified librarian is a person holding a Master of Library Science (MLS), Master Science in LIS, 
Master of Library and Information Science (MLIS), or other comparable degree from an ALA-
accredited program and/or actively participates in continuing education opportunities each 
year offered by the Illinois State Library, regional library systems, and the Illinois Library 
Association. Library boards and communities should strive to have a minimum of one staff 
member holding an ALA accredited master’s degree.) 

☒The board of trustees meets regularly, in accordance with the Illinois Compiled Statutes, with 
the library administrator in attendance. All board meetings and board committee meetings 
shall comply with the Open Meetings Act. 

☒The board of trustees has exclusive control of the expenditure of all monies collected, donated, 
or appropriated for the library fund and all property owned by the library. 

73



 

Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2024 Review Page 2 of 18 

 

 

☒The library has a board-approved written budget. The budget is developed annually by the 
library administrator and the board with input from the staff. 

☒The board of trustees annually determines if the library’s revenues are sufficient to meet the 
needs of the community. If the revenues are not sufficient, the board of trustees will take 
action to increase the library’s revenues. 

☒The library has a board-approved mission statement, a long-range/strategic plan, disaster 
prevention and recovery plan, collection management policy, personnel policy, technology 
plan, and other policies as appropriate to the library’s operation and regularly updates and 
maintains them as appropriate.  

☒The library administrator presents written monthly reports, including statistics, on library 
operations to the board of trustees. In addition, monthly fiscal reports are presented by the 
library administrator and/or the library board treasurer. 

☒The board of trustees annually reviews the performance of the library administrator. 

☒The library is a member of an Illinois regional library system, fulfills the membership 
requirements of its system, is a responsible partner in the Illinois Library and Information 
Network (ILLINET), and participates in resource sharing through interlibrary loan and 
reciprocal borrowing. 

☒The library provides access to resource sharing databases, participates in resource sharing by 
entering the library’s collections into a regional, statewide, or national database, and actively 
promotes resource sharing via interlibrary loan and reciprocal borrowing. 

☒The library utilizes a variety of methods to communicate with its community. 

☒ The library is located in a facility designed or renovated for library purposes and complies with 
all applicable local, state, and federal codes.  We need more restrooms at Winnetka but 
cannot add them without adding additional space.  

☒A library is open a minimum of fifteen hours per week according to the Illinois Administrative 
Code [23 Ill. Adm. Code 3030.110]. 

☒As a baseline, the library appropriates money to major budget categories (personnel, benefits, 
library materials, other operating expenditures) using the Illinois Public Library Annual Report 
statewide percentages analysis. 

☒The library board and staff promote the collections and services available to its community. 

☒At least every five years, and more frequently, if necessary, the library conducts a review to 
determine if the library is providing facilities, collections and services in a quantity, at a time, 
and in a manner that meets the needs of the community. 

  

74



 

Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2024 Review Page 3 of 18 

 

 

Chapter 2 - Governance and Administration 

☒Library has an elected or appointed board of trustees.  

☒Library has a qualified library administrator. 

☒Library administrator files an Illinois Public Library Annual Report (IPLAR) with the Illinois State 
Library. 

☒Library administrator prepares monthly reports (including statistics) of operations and services 
for the board’s review. 

☒Library administrator and/or library board treasurer prepares monthly fiscal reports for the 
board’s review. 

☒Library has a mission statement and a long-range/strategic plan. 

☒Library maintains an understanding of the community by surveys, hearings, and other means. 

☒Library board reviews library policies on a regular basis. 

☒Library board members participate in local, state, regional, and national decision making that 
will benefit libraries. 

☒Library develops an orientation program for new board members. 

☒Library board members attend local, regional, state, and national conferences pertinent to 
libraries when fiscally possible.  

☒Library keeps adequate records of library operations and follows proper procedures for disposal 
of records. 

☒Library complies and keeps current with appropriate Illinois and federal laws pertaining to 
public libraries. 

☒Library has a board-approved set of written by laws that govern the conduct of the board of 
trustees and its relationship to the library and staff. 

☒Library maintains insurance covering property and liability, including volunteer liability. 

☒Library has a written succession plan focused on both internal and external talent development 
to fill anticipated needs for library leadership and other key personnel. 

  

75



 

Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2024 Review Page 4 of 18 

 
 

Chapter 3 - Personnel 
☒Library has a board-approved personnel policy. 

☒Library has staffing levels that are sufficient to carry out the library’s mission.  

☒Library has job descriptions and a salary schedule for all library positions. The job descriptions 
and salary schedule are periodically reviewed and revised as needed. 

☒Library’s hiring practices are in compliance with EEOC guidelines and the Americans with 
Disabilities Act. 

☒Library salaries and fringe benefits account for up to 70 percent of total operations budget. We 
continued to increase our Personnel expenditures from 54.9% of the operating budget 
to 57.8% of the operating budget this year, which is a big improvement. We will 
continue to evaluate staffing on an annual basis as part of the budgeting process.  

☒Library gives each new employee a thorough orientation. 

☒Library evaluates staff annually. 

☒Library staff and administration attend local, regional, state, and national conferences as well as 
training workshops and seminars where feasible. 

☒Library provides staff access to library literature and other professional development materials. 

☒Public library trustees and administrators are aware of federal, state, and local statutes and 
regulations relevant to personnel administration. 

☒The library complies with state and federal laws that affect library operations. 

  

76



 

Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2024 Review Page 5 of 18 

 
 
Chapter 4 - Access 
☒The library provides the right amount of space of the right kind to meet the provisions of its 

long-range/strategic plan. We need more space, and a plan is in place to help us get it.  

☒At least once every five years, the board directs a review of the library’s long-term space needs. 

☒The staff are familiar with the requirements contained in the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA) and work to address deficiencies in order to provide universal access to all patrons. 

☒The library, including branches or other service points, is located at a site that is determined to 
be most convenient for the community. 

☒The library provides adequate, safe, well-lit, and convenient parking during all hours of service.  

☐The library has the minimum required number of parking spaces. We will never meet this 
standard but adjacent neighborhood/public parking is available.  

☒The library’s entrance is easily identified, clearly visible, and well lit. 

☒The library has an identifying sign clearly visible from the street. Additional signs guide users 
from arterial streets to the library. Winnetka signed installed this year but Northfield 
Library signage still not visible from the street. Will be addressed as part of remodel. 

☒The library has adequate internal signage.  

☒The library’s lighting levels comply with lighting standards. 

☒All signage is in compliance with applicable federal, state, and local regulations. 

☒The library building supports the implementation of current and future telecommunications and 
electronic information technologies. 

☒The library has sturdy and comfortable furnishings in sufficient quantity to meet user needs. We 
have sturdy and comfortable furniture for the amount of space we have but lack 
sufficient quantity to meet needs. We cannot address this without adding space.  

☒Space is allocated for child and family use with furniture and equipment designed for use by 
children. 

☒The library has enough shelving and other types of display and storage to provide patrons with 
easy access to all materials. The lack of overall space and layout makes adequate display 
space challenging, but we do the best we can with our existing space.  

☒Shelving in the areas serving young children is scaled to their needs. 

  

77



 

Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2024 Review Page 6 of 18 

 
 
Chapter 5 – Building Infrastructure and Maintenance 
☒The library maintains an inventory of all facility systems, including sufficient basic information 

that can be used in maintenance operations. This list should be prepared by the library 
administrator. 

☒The library’s facility inventory system list should be consolidated in an easily accessible 
document which is made available in electronic format such that it can be accessed by key staff 
at all times remotely. 

☒An ongoing maintenance checklist of building maintenance that needs to be done on a routine 
or ongoing basis should be kept.  

☒The library’s operating budget should include funds for all ongoing maintenance costs. 

☒The library should maintain a periodic repair checklist of repairs to the facility that may be 
required on a periodic basis, typically more than one-year intervals.  

☒The library budget should allocate funds for periodic repairs in either its operating budget or 
special reserve fund. 

☒The library should have a list of all projected building capital projects. Capital projects are those 
projects that involve major repairs, rehabilitation, and/or replacement of facility systems. Such 
projects are implemented when a facility system has reached the end of its service life, or when 
defects in the original construction necessitate major repairs/replacement. 

☒The library develops a capital reserve fund that will fund major capital projects. Annual 
contributions to such a fund will allow the library to have sufficient funding to take care of the 
needed project. In general, any item that cannot be accounted for in the library’s operating 
budget should be accounted for in the library’s capital reserve fund. 

☒The library should have a capital asset plan. This plan can be written by the library administrator 
or by an outside professional. A capital asset plan will project facility funding needs over a ten, 
fifteen, and twenty-year period. 

☒The board of trustees should review the library capital plan on annual basis to ensure all projects 
are addressed. 

☒Every three to five years, review and update the capital asset plan to be certain all costs and 
interest rates are current. 

☒All warranties, manuals, contact information, and other such documentation should be 
organized and consolidated for easy access. 

☒The library should strive to make its building as environmentally friendly as possible. 

  

78



 

Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2024 Review Page 7 of 18 

 
 
Chapter 6 - Safety 
☒The library provides a list of emergency call numbers at all staff phones in the library. 

☒The library has a floor plan that shows entrances, exits, location of emergency supplies, fire 
alarms, and fire extinguishers.  

☒The library has an emergency manual and disaster plan. 

☒The library provides emergency training for staff, including fire and tornado drills, use of fire 
extinguishers, and location of the first aid kit, NARCAN® kit, and an automated external 
defibrillator.  

☒The library provides a call list and contact information that is reviewed biannually. 

☒Emergency medical supplies are stored in a designated location and are accessible to staff. 

☒Emergency equipment such as electric, gas and water switches, fire extinguishers, and fire 
alarms are noted on a library floor plan and are tested biannually.  

☐A prioritization list shows what should be salvaged in order of importance. Will evaluate and 
create something within the next calendar year.  

☒A building safety checklist includes daily, weekly, quarterly, semi-annual, and annual safety 
procedures.  

☒A procedure exists for letting staff know when it is unsafe to enter the building. 

☒The library has a designated tornado shelter. 

☒Emergency exits and evacuation routes out of the library and to the tornado shelter are clearly 
marked. Fire extinguishers are clearly marked.  

☒The library provides adequate security for staff, users, and collections. We are in the process 
of adding additional exits and reworking the Winnetka lobby to increase security.   

☒The library has a strong relationship with local police and community safety personnel and 
communicates with them on a regular basis about safety issues affecting the library.  

☒At least two people (one of whom may be a volunteer) shall be on duty during all open hours of 
operation. 

☒Copies of the emergency manual and disaster plan are provided to community safety personnel.  

☒A policy for security camera usage has been adopted and signage is posted. Draft will be 
brought to January 2025 Board Meeting for approval.  

  

79



 

Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2024 Review Page 8 of 18 

 
 
Chapter 7 - Collection Management 
☒The library board of trustees ensures that the library has a publicly funded budget to purchase 

materials.  

☒The minimum annual expenditure for materials for any size library should be a minimum of 8 to 
12 percent of the operating budget. Library budgets should put priority on purchasing 
materials that best serve their community.  

☒The library has a written collection development policy approved by the board. 

☒Materials are cataloged according to standard library practices utilizing MARC 21, AACR2 Rules, 
Sears/LC subject headings, and RDA. 

☒Library collections are evaluated annually to measure the effectiveness of community use of the 
collection and weeded if deemed appropriate. 

☒The library considers forming a cooperative collection plan with other libraries in close 
proximity to one another. 

☒The library strives to complement its print collection by purchasing electronic materials and 
making them available to patrons through a variety of methods. 

☒The library publicizes and promotes interlibrary loan to its patrons. 

☒Library staff is trained in and follows policies and procedures related to the ILLINET Interlibrary 
Loan Code and the ALA Interlibrary Loan Code. Libraries agree to be responsible borrowers and 
lenders. 

  

80



 

Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2024 Review Page 9 of 18 

 
 
Chapter 8 – System Member Responsibilities and Resource Sharing 
☒Library staff and library board members are aware of the services offered by the regional library 

systems and the Illinois State Library. The library promotes statewide cooperative services in 
addition to their own local services. 

☒Library resources, information, and expertise are available via interlibrary loan, reciprocal 
borrowing, and other formal cooperative agreements; and the library participates in system 
delivery. 

☒The library abides by the ILLINET Interlibrary Loan Code as well as other formal 
regional/consortial agreements. 

☒The library administrator, library staff, and library board members actively participate as 
members of boards, committees, task forces, advisory councils, etc., at various levels, including 
the regional library system, the Illinois State Library, and the Illinois Library Association, and 
bring a regional and statewide perspective that envisions all types of libraries, not just their 
local library and library type issues. 

☒The library, in cooperation with regional library systems and the Illinois State Library, promotes 
statewide tax-supported public library service for every Illinois resident. 

☒If a legally established public library currently does not meet the eligibility requirements for 
Illinois State Library/Illinois Office of the Secretary of State grants, the library should work in 
cooperation with its regional library system regarding grant eligibility and compliance. 

  

81



 

Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2024 Review Page 10 of 18 

 
 
Chapter 9 – Public Services: Reference and Reader’s Advisory Services 
 
Reference Services 
☒All basic services are available when the library is open. 

☒The library has a reference service policy. 

☒The library provides staff trained in reference service to meet the needs of patrons who have 
challenges with disabilities, language, and literacy. 

☒The library participates in interlibrary loan and resource sharing to help provide accurate and 
timely reference service. 

☒The library is aware of the importance of accuracy in reference service and relies on information 
sources of demonstrated currency and authority. 

☒The library supports training in the use of technologies necessary to access electronic resources, 
including training for persons with disabilities in the use of adaptive equipment and software. 

☒The library provides easy access to accurate and up-to-date community information. 

☒The library provides current issues of at least one community or local newspaper and retains 
hard copy or online back issues for a minimum of six months. 

☒The library provides access to local ordinances or codes of all municipalities within its service 
boundaries. 

☒The library provides access to local and state maps. 

☒The library provides access to the minutes of local government meetings. These include but are 
not limited to municipal (village, township, or city) and school board meetings. 

☒The library provides voter information, including precinct boundaries and location of polling 
places. 

☒The library provides information about local history and events. 

☒The library has at least one current reference resource for each subject area. 

☒Staff has access to a telephone or computer to receive and respond to requests for information 
and materials and to contact other agencies for information. 

☒Staff members are encouraged to attend at least one relevant continuing education event each 
year. 

☒The library evaluates its reference service on an annual basis. 

  

82



 

Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2024 Review Page 11 of 18 

 
 
Reader’s Advisory Services 
☒All basic services are available when the library is open. 

☒The library has competently trained staff that has thorough knowledge of popular authors and 
titles. 

☒The library maintains a well-rounded collection of both fiction and nonfiction titles. 

☒The library participates in interlibrary loan and resource sharing to help provide accurate and 
timely reader’s advisory service. 

☒The library maintains a basic collection of reader’s advisory reference materials. 

☒All staff members attend at least one relevant continuing education event each year. 

☒Staff members who are responsible for reader’s advisory service in their library join at least one 
community organization, club, or council. 

☒Staff members who are responsible for reader’s advisory service in their library attend at least 
one workshop, reading roundtable, or continuing education event. 

☐The library accepts and responds to reader’s advisory requests received in person, on the phone, 
or electronically. 

  

83



 

Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2024 Review Page 12 of 18 

 
 
Chapter 10 - Programming 
☒Library programs are provided free of charge, or on a cost recovery basis. 

☒Library programs are located in a physically accessible location. 

☒Provisions are made, as needed, to enable persons with disabilities to participate in the program. 
The availability of these provisions is noted with other information about the program.  

☒The library considers community demographics, special populations, and the availability of 
programming from other social, cultural, and recreational organizations in the community 
when planning and evaluating programs. 

☒The library presents educational, cultural, and recreational programs that reflect community 
needs and interests. 

☒Programming is designed to address the diversity within the community, to increase the 
awareness and use of library resources and services, and to attract new users. 

☒The library provides outreach programs to specific populations who cannot visit the library. 

☒The library has programming that seeks to serve children and their caregivers. 

☒The library has programming that seeks to serve young adults. 

☒The library has programming that seeks to serve adults and senior citizens. 

☒The library provides programs on library instruction for all ages. This includes online catalog 
and online database training opportunities. 

☒The library is encouraged to partner with other organizations to offer programs. 

  

84



 

Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2024 Review Page 13 of 18 

 
 
Chapter 11 - Youth/Young Adult Services 
☒All basic youth services are available when the library is open. 

☒The library provides staff trained in serving youth. 

☒The library has policies towards serving youth which it reviews at least every two years, and 
youth staff have input in these policy revisions and creations. 

☒The library actively promotes respect for diversity and creates an inclusive, welcoming, and 
respectful library atmosphere for all patrons. 

☒The library provides staff trained in assisting youth with disabilities, language, and literacy 
barriers.  

☒The library provides staff trained to assist youth with adaptive equipment and software as 
needed for accessibility of resources.  Currently working on identifying any assistive 
equipment that would meet resource needs. Have not had any requests.  

☒The library strives to eliminate barriers of service for youth, including regularly reviewing any 
content restrictions, library card requirements, and Internet policies. 

☒The library regularly, and at least annually, evaluates its services for youth with regard to 
popularity, effectiveness, accuracy, timeliness, and patron ease. The library seeks input from 
staff serving youth—as well as the community—regarding these services. 

☒The library provides programming for youth which is developmentally appropriate and meets 
the needs of the community. 

☒The library’s programming is designed to reflect the needs and interests of youth in the 
community. 

☒Library programs are provided free of charge or on a cost-recovery basis. 

☒The library makes provisions that enable persons with disabilities to attend programming and 
lists these provisions with other programming information.  

☒The library considers community demographics, special populations, and the availability of 
resources from social, cultural, and recreational organizations in the community when 
planning and evaluating library services for youth. 

☒The library strives to partner with youth-facing organizations in the community. 

☒The library provides youth with research and information literacy instruction through tours, 
training sessions, and one-on-one interactions. 

☒The library has staff who have knowledge of popular authors, titles, and resources to provide 
these services. 

 

85



 

Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2024 Review Page 14 of 18 

 

 

☒Youth staff have access to a telephone and computer to receive and respond to requests for 
information and to contact other agencies. 

☒Youth staff responsible for collection management have access to review journals and tools 
specifically targeting youth materials. 

☒The library includes at least one current resource created and intended for youth for each 
subject area. Electronic resources also fulfill this requirement. 

☒The library provides computer access for all youth and provides guidance on digital literacy and 
technology use to youth. 

☒The library provides outreach services towards youth to increase awareness of services, attract 
new users, and reach underserved populations. 

☒The library strives to partner with and support local schools, including private schools and 
homeschoolers. 

☒Staff members are encouraged to attend as many continuing education workshops and events as 
possible to stay current on trends and best practices for serving youth. 

☒The library provides a space specifically for use by children and families. 

☒The shelving used for housing children’s materials is appropriately sized to allow for easier 
access. 

☒The library provides early literacy programming, including regular story time, for children and 
families. 

☒The library provides programming which facilitates play and fun for children and families. 

☒The library provides toys and interactive materials for use in the library, during programs, 
and/or at home that facilitate play, fun, and imagination. 

☒The library provides a summer reading opportunity to encourage reading and learning during 
the summer. 

☒The library provides a welcoming environment for young adults both individually and in groups. 

☒The library provides developmentally appropriate programming for young adults that encourage 
self-identity and positive interactions while providing opportunities to socialize and have fun. 

☒The library provides materials both physical and digital for young adults that are intended for 
them.  

☒The library partners with young adults in the community to provide opportunities for leadership 
such as a young adult (or teen) advisory board, volunteer group, or other formal or informal 
opportunities.   

86



 

Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2024 Review Page 15 of 18 

 
 
Chapter 12 - Technology 
☒Based on local technology planning, the library ensures adequate technological access and 

maintains appropriate hardware/software that effectively accommodates both library 
operations and patron need. 

☒The library has:  

☒a telephone, with a listing in the phone book; 

☒a telephone voice mail and/or answering machine; 

☒a fax and/or scanner; 

☒a photocopier; 

☒effective Internet access with sufficient capacity to meet the needs of both the staff and 
the public; 

☒library and/or departmental email accounts for patron communication with the library 
(the library email account is reviewed and responded to during library hours); 

☒an Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) compliant library website that is updated at least 
monthly;  

☒up-to-date computers for staff and public access with sufficient capacity to meet needs; 

☒up-to-date printers for staff and public access with sufficient capacity to meet needs; 

☒up-to-date antivirus and Internet security software protection installed on every library 
computer; 

☒up-to-date Internet browsers, web applications, and plug-ins; 

☒a valid email address, accessible via the library’s website, for the library administrator; 
and 

☒a website that includes basic library information such as hours, location, contact, official 
name of library, and content required by the Open Meetings Act. 

☒The library provides a sufficient number of patron-accessible workstations/devices on a per 
capita basis. 

☒The wait time for patron workstations does not exceed 15 to 30 minutes. 

☒The library annually evaluates and, if necessary, updates its Internet connectivity options for 
service impact and cost-effectiveness. 

☒The library provides 24/7 remote access to library services and resources through: 

a web-accessible library catalog; 

87



 

Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2024 Review Page 16 of 18 

 

 

 

☒an Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) compliant library website that is updated at 
least monthly;  

☒appropriate regional, state, national, and international bibliographic databases; 

☒other authenticated electronic resources that are available for direct patron use;  

☒virtual reference service, and/or text messaging services, and/or a library email account. 

☒The library staff must be: 

☒computer literate; 

☒trained to use and assist patrons in the use of electronic resources and materials; and 

☒accessible via email and/or through messaging services. 

☒The library provides or partners with other community agencies to offer its patrons instruction 
(workshops, classes) in the use of computers, email, productivity software, and the Internet. 

☒The library provides web links and access to regional and/or statewide initiatives including: 

☒regional library system consortial web-based catalogs; 

☒the CARLI academic library catalog (I-Share) 

☒Illinois State Library-sponsored databases/e-resources; other electronic collections as 
available; and 

☒virtual reference service.  

☒As an equal partner in resource sharing, the library inputs and makes its collection holdings 
accessible for resource sharing within a regional, statewide, national, and/or international 
database. 

☒The library has a board-adopted Internet acceptable use policy. 

☒The Internet acceptable use policy is reviewed annually.  

☒The library budgets for ongoing technology needs including but not limited to: hardware and 
software purchases, upgrades, ongoing maintenance, services, and connectivity. 

☒The library maintains, troubleshoots, repairs, and replaces computer hardware and software. 
This ongoing maintenance is handled by trained library staff and/or via a contractual service 
agreement with an appropriate service provider. 

☒The library develops and updates, at regular intervals, a long-range/strategic plan for its future 
technology needs. The plan is based on community needs and priorities. 

 

88



 

Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2024 Review Page 17 of 18 

 

 

☒The library continuously strives to improve its technological services, resources, and access. An 
ongoing planning cycle includes a needs assessment that examines current and emerging 
technologies and service enhancements including but not limited to: 

☒wireless access (Wi-Fi); 

☒Internet connectivity upgrades sufficient for patron and staff use; 

☒networking (local area vs. wide area); 

☒library Intranet; 

☒an Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) compliant library website that is updated at least 
monthly, highlights library services and programs, includes hyperlinks, is mobile 
compatible, and is interactive;  

☒patron self-checkout functionality; 

☒new technologies/potential services; for example, social networking, makerspace, and 
mobile apps; 

☒current and functional meeting room technology; 

☒adaptive technologies that accommodate service needs for persons with disabilities and 
special populations, including but not limited to: accessible computer hardware, deaf 
interpreters, language translators, open captioning; and  

☒ongoing staff continuing education/training related to all aspects of technological 
services. 

☒The library protects the integrity, safety, and security of its technological environment. 

☒The library’s automated catalog and its components comply with current state, national, and 
international standards. 

☒The library is aware of E-rate discounts (telecommunications/connectivity services and/or 
Internet access) as available through the Schools and Libraries Program of the Universal 
Service Fund, administered by the Universal Service Administrative Company (USAC) under 
the direction of the Federal Communications Commission (FCC). 

  

89



 

Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2024 Review Page 18 of 18 

 
 
Chapter 13- Marketing, Promotion, and Collaboration 
☒The library has a communications plan that supports the library’s long-range/strategic plan.  

☒The library staff and trustees participate in two or more cooperative activities with other 
community organizations. 

☒The library’s services and programs are promoted in the community. Check the applicable 
publicity methods.  

☒flyers 

☒brochures 

☒website 

☒newsletter 

☒posters 

☒banners 

☒displays 

☐podcasting No plans to pursue podcasts at this time. 

☒presentations and/or speeches 

☐Billboards/other No plans to pursue Billboard ads at this time. 

☒The library maintains at least one social media account.  

☒The library invites local, state, and federal officials to visit the library. 

☒The library’s website is updated at least monthly. 

☒The board, administration, and staff conduct an annual library walk-through.  

☒The board, administration, and appropriate staff visit other libraries. 

☒The budget includes funds for public relations and marketing activities. 

☒The library’s promotional methods and services are ADA compliant.  

☒A designated staff member coordinates the library’s marketing efforts.  

☒The library’s staff receives customer service and marketing training.  

☒The library’s orientation for staff and trustees includes the library’s public relations, customer 
service philosophy, library history, funding sources, and long-range/strategic plan.  

☒The library surveys patrons and the community to judge awareness of the library’s programs and 
services. 

90



91



92



93



94



95



96


	24DEC Board Meeting Agenda
	24NOV Regular Meeting Minutes
	24NOV Financials
	Header
	Main

	24DEC Director's Report
	COLLECTIONS
	Physical Adult (By Location)
	Physical Youth (By Location)
	Physical Miscellaneous
	Physical Adult (By Type)
	MTD Total Physical Circulation
	Digital Circulation


	FY23-24 Audit Letter- FINAL
	FY23-24 Audit- FINAL
	WNPLD Standards 4.0 Checklist 2024
	Serving Our Public 4.0: Standards for Illinois Public Libraries
	Chapter 1 - Core Standards
	Chapter 3 - Personnel
	Chapter 4 - Access
	Chapter 5 – Building Infrastructure and Maintenance
	Chapter 6 - Safety
	Chapter 7 - Collection Management
	Chapter 8 – System Member Responsibilities and Resource Sharing
	Chapter 9 – Public Services: Reference and Reader’s Advisory Services
	Reference Services
	Reader’s Advisory Services

	Chapter 10 - Programming
	Chapter 11 - Youth/Young Adult Services
	Chapter 12 - Technology
	Chapter 13- Marketing, Promotion, and Collaboration


	Village of Northfield Resolution 622-24- WNPLD Lease Extension



